

THE VAQUERO CLUB, INC.

CUSTOMS AND COURTESIES

Table of Contents

Preamble	1
General Club Customs and Courtesies	1
Member Accounts, Dues and Charges	3
Contact Information	4
Reservations and Cancellations	4
Club Services and Activities	4
Loss or Destruction of Property or Instances of Personal Injury	5
Gratuities	5
Attire	6
Guest Privileges	6
General Golf Customs and Courtesies	7
Practice Grounds	8
Caddie Customs and Courtesies	8
General Golf Car Customs and Courtesies	9
Golf Course Etiquette	10
General Tennis Customs and Courtesies	10
Tennis Etiquette	11
Fitness Facilities	11
Club Pool	12
Children	13
Kid's Club	13
Fish Camp	13

PREAMBLE

These Customs and Courtesies are intended to be a guide to the use of The Vaquero Club, Inc. (the "Club") facilities. They are not intended to deal with all conceivable issues that may be presented for governance. These Customs and Courtesies are established by the Club to protect the Club Facilities and to promote the health, safety, welfare and enjoyment of the Members, their families and guests and all other persons using the Club Facilities. The Club is committed to providing all Members and their guests with an enjoyable Club experience. To uphold these standards, Members and guests are expected to act in a manner consistent with good taste. The Club may amend these Customs and Courtesies from time to time as it determines appropriate in its sole discretion. Herein, "Club Management" is defined as the Board of Directors, Officers, General Manager and other Club departmental directors. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Club's Bylaws.

GENERAL CLUB CUSTOMS AND COURTESIES

- 1. Members, their families and their guests shall abide by all Customs and Courtesies of the Club as they may be amended from time to time.
- 2. The Club's Facilities shall be open on the days and during the hours as may be established from time to time by Club Management. Areas of the Club may also be closed from time to time for scheduled maintenance and repairs.
- 3. Dining room activities for groups will be permitted only with the permission of Club Management.
- 4. Alcoholic beverages will not be served or sold, nor permitted to be consumed, at the Club during hours or at locations prohibited by law. No alcoholic beverages will be sold or served to any person not permitted to purchase the same under the laws of the State of Texas, or any applicable ordinances or regulations. All alcoholic beverages consumed or otherwise possessed on the Club Facilities must be sold and purchased at the Club. The Club reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to refuse service to a Member or guest when that Member or guest appears to be intoxicated.
- 5. All food and beverages consumed on the Club Facilities must be furnished by the Club unless otherwise permitted by Club Management.
- 6. Commercial advertisements shall not be posted or circulated in the Club nor shall solicitations of any kind be made on the Club Facilities or upon the Club's stationery without the prior approval of Club Management.
- 7. Other than as permitted by the Bylaws or the Board of Directors, no petition shall be originated, solicited, circulated or posted on any of the Club Facilities.
- 8. Members shall not use the roster or list of Members of the Club for solicitation or commercial purposes. Members shall not distribute the roster or list of Members.
- 9. It is contrary to the Club's policy to have the facilities used for functions which are in any way related to fundraising efforts for the benefit of a political or religious cause, except as specifically permitted by Club Management. The Club Facilities shall not be used in connection with organized religious services unless otherwise determined by Club Management from time to time.
- 10. Members should not request special personal services from employees of the Club who are on duty or the personal use of the Club's furnishings or equipment which are not ordinarily available for Member's use, without permission from Club Management.

- 11. When dogs are permitted on the grounds, they must be trained, well behaved and on a leash. Members are responsible for damage or injury caused by an animal owned by the Member or under the Member's control. Dogs are not permitted inside the Fitness Center, outdoor pool area or in any of the food and beverage outlets. Dogs are allowed at the outdoor areas of the Ranch House.
- 12. Service animals are allowed to accompany the handler to any place in a building or facility at The Vaquero Club where Members or event participants, customers, or clients are allowed. Service animals are not pets.

We may deny access to a service animal whose behavior is unacceptable or in situations in which the person with a disability is not in control of the animal. Uncontrolled barking, sniffing food at a restaurant table, jumping on other people, or running away from the handler are examples of unacceptable behavior for a service animal.

A service animal does not include pets, emotional support animals, comfort animals or therapy animals, which do not perform task(s) related to an individual's disability.

- 13. All complaints, criticisms or suggestions of any kind relating to any of the operations of the Club or its employees must be via email or mail and addressed to the General Manager. Complaints, criticisms or suggestions regarding the General Manager should be addressed to the President of the Board of Directors.
- 14. Members and their guests may not abuse any of the Club's employees, verbally or otherwise. All employees of the Club are under the supervision of the General Manager and no Member or guest shall reprimand or discipline any employee, nor shall a Member request an employee to leave the Club Facilities for any purpose whatsoever. Any employee not rendering courteous and prompt service should be reported to the General Manager immediately.
- 15. No unlicensed vehicles are permitted on the Club Facilities.
- 16. Smoking is permitted only in designated areas.
- 17. Absolutely no fireworks are permitted anywhere on the Club Facilities or adjacent areas unless part of a fireworks exhibit organized and conducted by the Club.
- 18. Firearms and all other weapons of any kind are not permitted at the Club Facilities at any time.
- 19. Cell phone conversations are not permitted anywhere in the Club facilities, particularly the dining areas, golf course, practice facility or Ranch House. Quiet use of cell phones is permitted for texting, email or other use, so long as they are in silent mode and their use is not disruptive to other Members. Cell phone conversations are permitted in the bathrooms and locker rooms.
- 20. No performance by entertainers will be permitted on the Club Facilities without the permission of Club Management.
- 21. No Member, visitor or guest is allowed in the service or restricted areas of the Club without permission from Club Management.
- 22. Use of the Club Facilities may be restricted or reserved from time to time by Club Management.
- 23. Violation of any of these rules or conduct in a manner prejudicial to the best interests of the Club will subject the person in violation to disciplinary action in accordance with the By-Laws of the Club.

- 24. The Board of Directors of the Club reserves the right to amend or modify these customs and courtesies as it determines appropriate from time to time and will notify the membership of any change.
- 25. The personnel of the Club have full authority to enforce these customs and courtesies and any infractions will be reported to the General Manager.
- 26. In no event shall the Club discriminate against any individual because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap or marital status.
- 27. Vaqueroville and Comfort Stations: The use of Vaqueroville and the comfort stations will be available to golfers only, specifically for Members and guests playing a round of golf.
- 28. Immediate Family (including Spouse and Significant Other) membership use rights will not be provided (and guest rights of Immediate Family may be restricted) if the Immediate Family member or guest: (i) was previously employed by the Club or (ii) has exhibited conduct or character unbecoming of a member or in any way endangering the good order, welfare or character of the Club, as determined in the Club's sole discretion.

MEMBER ACCOUNTS, DUES AND CHARGES

- 1. The Club will issue a membership account to the Member, as well as to the other members of his or her family who are eligible for membership privileges.
- 2. Membership accounts are only for the use of the person(s) for whom it is established. Memberships are not transferrable.
- 3. Members' dues will be billed on an annual basis unless otherwise determined by the Club.
- 4. A Member is entitled to charge privileges at the Club so long as his or her membership is in good standing.
- 5. All food, beverage, merchandise and services of the Club charged to the Member's Club account will be billed monthly and each Member's Club account shall be due and payable upon receipt of the monthly statement.
- 6. Club accounts shall be deemed delinquent if payment is not received within 30 days after the date of the monthly statement. Past due bills will be subject to a one and one-half percent (1.5%) late payment charge per month, but not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law. The late payment charge shall accrue 30 days from the date of the monthly statement until the account is paid in full. Members having past due bills may be charged a reinstatement fee at the discretion of the Club to reactivate an account once it is deemed delinquent.
- 7. If a Member fails to pay any Club account within 30 days of when it is billed, the Club shall have the right to suspend membership privileges in the Club at any time until the delinquent account is paid in full. Continued delinquency for a period of 90 days from the date a Club account is first billed or repeated incidents of delinquency by a Member may result in termination of membership in the Club.
- 8. When a membership is issued in the name of more than one person, each person shall be jointly and severally liable for all dues, fees and other charges and liabilities associated with the membership.

9. If the Club account of any Member is delinquent, the Club may at its option take whatever action it deems necessary to effect collection, including without limitation, suspension or termination of a membership or legal action. If the Club commences any legal action to collect any amount owed by any Member or to enforce any other liability of any Member to the Club, and if judgment is obtained by the Club, the Member shall also be liable for all costs and expenses of such legal action and reasonable attorneys' fees, including any fees required in connection with appellate proceedings.

CONTACT INFORMATION

- 1. Each Member shall be responsible for filing with the Club, in writing, on a form provided by the Club, his or her mailing address, cell phone number, email address and any changes thereto, where the Member wishes all notices and invoices of the Club to be sent. A Member shall be deemed to have received mailings from the Club ten (10) days after they have been mailed to the address on file with the Club. In the absence of an address on file, any Club mailing may, with the same effect described above, be addressed as the General Manager may think is most likely to cause its prompt delivery.
- 2. Each Member shall be responsible for notifying in writing of any change of address. Failure to do so shall constitute a waiver of the right to receive Club notices, bulletins and any other communications, and a violation of these customs and courtesies.

RESERVATIONS AND CANCELLATIONS

- 1. Dinner reservations may be required from time to time as determined by the General Manager. Reservations for parties of more than ten (10) persons will be accommodated on an "as available" basis.
- 2. Reservations are required for most activities of the Club and shall be accepted on a first-come, first-served basis by pre-registering with the appropriate personnel of the Club through the website or designated method, such as a dedicated email address or telephone direct dial number.
- 3. For all functions of the Club held in the dining rooms of the Club, tables will be assigned on a first-call, first-choice basis. Reservations for bar tables will not be accepted.
- 4. Reservations will be held for only thirty (30) minutes after the reserved time.
- 5. Reservations for banquets and special events should be made at least three (3) weeks in advance. Cancellations must be made at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. If this is not done, the Member will be charged for each person reserved. A non-refundable deposit may be required for banquet reservations. In the event of a cancellation, any non-refundable expenses will be the responsibility of the cancelling party.

CLUB SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES

- 1. The Club provides a variety of social, cultural and recreational events in which all Members are encouraged to participate.
- 2. The Club desires to encourage the use of the Club Facilities by Members for private parties on any day or evening, provided it does not interfere with the normal operation of the Club, or with the services regularly available to Members. Members are requested to make reservations and should contact the appropriate Club personnel for available dates and arrangements.

3. Private functions are permitted at the Club only with prior permission of the Club Management. The individual sponsoring the function shall assume full responsibility for the conduct of guests in accordance with these customs and courtesies. The individual sponsoring the private function shall be responsible for any damage caused by the installation of any decor and shall be responsible for the removal of all such decor. The sponsor of the function shall be responsible for the payment of any charges not paid by individuals attending the private function.

LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY OR INSTANCES OF PERSONAL INJURY

- 1. Each Member as a condition of membership, and each guest as a condition of invitation to the Club Facilities, assumes sole responsibility for his or her property. The Club shall not be responsible for any loss or damage to any private property used or stored on the Club Facilities.
- 2. No person shall remove from the Club's premises any property or furniture belonging to the Club without proper authorization. Every Member of the Club shall be liable for any property damage and/or personal injury at the Club, or at any activity or function operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club, caused by the Member, any guest or any family member. The cost of such damage shall be charged to the responsible Member's Club account.
- 3. Any Member, family member, guest or other person who, in any manner, makes use of or accepts the use of any apparatus, appliance, facility, privilege or service whatsoever owned, leased or operated by the Club, or who engages in any contest, game, function, exercise, competition or other activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club, either on or off the Club's premises, shall do so at his or her own risk. The Member, his or her family members and guests shall hold the Club, and their affiliates, directors, officers, employees, representatives and agents ("Indemnified Parties") harmless from any and all loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by it, him or her, resulting therefrom and/or from any act or omission, whether due to negligence or otherwise, of any Indemnified Party. Any Member shall have, owe and perform the same obligation to the Indemnified Parties hereunder in respect to any such loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by any guest or family member.

Should any party bound by these Customs and Courtesies bring suit against any of the Indemnified Parties in connection with any event operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the Club or on any other claim or matter in connection with membership in the Club, and fail to obtain judgment therein against any one or more of them, said party shall be liable to the prevailing Indemnified Parties for all costs and expenses incurred by them in the defense of such suit, including court costs and attorneys' fees and expenses through all appellate proceedings.

GRATUITIES

- 1. For the convenience of all Members, a gratuity percentage, as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors, may be added to all food and beverage sales.
- 2. Cash tipping is not permitted by Members and guests of the Club, except for caddies.
- 3. In October, it is customary to send a letter from the President providing an opportunity for the Members to contribute to a Holiday Fund for employees, and a suggested contribution, of which payment is voluntary, and will be included on each Member's bill.

ATTIRE

- 1. It is expected that Members will choose to dress in a fashion befitting the surroundings and atmosphere provided in the setting of the Club. It is also expected that Members will advise their guests of the dress requirements.
- 2. Gentlemen and ladies are requested to dress in a fashion compatible with the appropriate occasion.
- 3. Shirts and shoes must be worn at all times when on Club Facilities, except for the Club pool.
- 4. The dress standards of the Club may be changed or waived by Club Management from time to time for special activities and functions.

GUEST PRIVILEGES

Guest privileges may be extended to guests of Members subject to applicable guest fees, charges and Customs and Courtesies established by the Board of Directors from time to time. Although it is the intention of the Club to accommodate guests without inconvenience to the Members, the Club reserves the right to limit the number of guests that accompany a Member on any given day. Guest privileges may be denied, withdrawn or revoked at any time for reasons considered sufficient by the Board of Directors at its discretion.

- 1. The Board of Directors may establish rules restricting the number of times a particular day guest may use the golf, tennis, fitness and social facilities of the Club.
- 2. A particular individual using the Club Facilities as a guest must be registered by the sponsoring Member with the Club. Guests will be charged guest fees for use of the Club Facilities as determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
- 3. Guests, including extended family members, must be accompanied by the sponsoring Member, Golf Professional, assistant Golf Professional, or General Manager when using the golf facility and by the sponsoring Member during their use of any other Club Facilities, unless otherwise determined by the Club from time to time.
- 4. No guest may use the golf facilities more than six (6) times per year and only <u>once a month</u> if their primary residence is within a 75-mile radius of the Club, regardless of the sponsoring Member, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors. Any guest traveling from outside the 75-mile *area* as noted above may use the Club no more than <u>twelve times</u> in a calendar year. Participation in major Club tournaments as posted on our annual calendar of events, and Club recognized holidays such as 4th of July, Christmas/ New Years and Thanksgiving weeks are excluded from this count. Family guests (1 generation up, down and sideways, including grandchildren) may use the golf facilities only <u>twelve</u> times per year regardless of how many visits per month at the preferred family rate. Additional rounds will be billed according to our normal guest rates for weekday and weekends.
- 5. Members are limited to a maximum of (4) guests per group. Members who have more than (4) guests are required to have a Golf Member or a representative of the Professional Golf Staff to accompany any additional groups. The use of a caddie is required when a group has two or more guests.
- 6. No more than one guest per playing group is allowed before 12:00 pm (noon) on Fridays, Saturdays and Holidays. Groups with more than one guest are required to wait until after 12:00 pm (noon) to tee off. Prior approval from the Golf Committee is required for any group with more than one guest to tee off before 12:00 pm (noon) on a Friday, Saturday, or Holiday.

- 7. The Club Manager reserves the right to require identification by each guest.
- 8. Guest privileges may be limited by the Board of Directors, from time to time, at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Notice of such limitation will be given by the Club Manager.
- 9. The sponsoring Member is responsible for the conduct of a guest while at the Club. If the manner, deportment or appearance of any guest is deemed to be unsatisfactory, the sponsoring Member shall, at the request of the Club, cause such guest to leave the Club Facilities.
- 10. Active-duty servicemen and servicewomen provide a great service to our country. As a token of appreciation for their service, active duty children of Members will be offered membership privileges while they are in the area visiting their family on leave.

GENERAL GOLF CUSTOMS AND COURTESIES

- 1. The Rules of Golf as adopted by the U.S.G.A. together with the Rules of Etiquette as adopted by the U.S.G.A. shall be the Customs and Courtesies of the Club, except when in conflict with local rules or with any of the Customs and Courtesies herein.
- 2. Walking is permitted, pull carts are not permitted.
- 3. All players must check in with the starter or at the practice facility. Reservations are accepted on a first come first play basis. Members requesting times in advance, along with those bringing guests, will be positioned in the order they arrive as close to the requested time as possible.
- 4. Play must begin on the 1st hole unless otherwise approved by the Director of Golf or Head Golf Professional. Play on the 10th hole will begin 1 hour and 30 minutes following the opening of the 1st hole on Fridays, Saturdays and Holidays unless otherwise approved by the Director of Golf or Head Golf Professional.
- 5. Practice is not allowed on the golf course. The practice grounds and practice putting green should be used for all practice.
- 6. All players who stop after playing nine (9) holes for any reason must obtain permission from the starter to resume play. The starter will determine where the players may resume play on the course.
- 7. All tournament play must be approved in advance by the Board of Directors.
- 8. Every Member maintaining a handicap and participating in events are expected to post their scores. The professional staff will conduct audits from time to time. Tournament scores will be posted by the golf professionals.
- 9. Proper golf attire is required for all players. Members are expected to ensure that their family Members and guests adhere to such Customs and Courtesies.
- 10. A "Course Closed" or "Hole Closed" signs are to be adhered to without exception.
- 11. Improperly dressed golfers shall be asked to change before playing. If you are in doubt concerning your attire, please check with the golf professional staff before starting play. Any misuse or disregard of the Customs and Courtesies may cause privileges to be reviewed or suspended.

- 12. Jogging, bicycling, skateboarding, use of mechanical devices or recreational walking is not permitted on the interior portion of the golf course while the course is open.
- 13. No beverage coolers are permitted on the course unless provided by the Club.
- 14. Twosomes may play at the discretion of the golf professional staff. Twosomes should not expect to play through foursomes and should not exert any pressure on the groups ahead. Foursomes shall have the right of way as long as they maintain position and adhere to the Club's 4-hour pace of play policy.
- 15. Twosomes and singles may be grouped with other players, if available, at the discretion of the starter or golf professional staff.
- 16. Junior golf play will be at the discretion of the golf professional staff and must be at least 14 years old unless they have prior approval from the Director of Golf.
- 17. If you are not holding your place on the course and/or an open hole ahead of your group has occurred and you are out of position, allow the players behind to play through. Do the same if you stop to search for a lost ball.
- 18. Teaching professionals (including Members) not employed or authorized by the Club are not permitted to teach without the prior consent of the General Manager.
- 19. The Club may close the golf course to general play during adverse weather conditions, when necessary maintenance of the golf facilities is required, when the course could be damaged by play or when golf tournaments and promotional events are held at the Club.
- 20. When the lightning alarm sounds (by the golf staff via a horn or notice through the golf Visage system), the golf course is closed to all play and will remain closed until the all clear is communicated by the golf professional staff. All events become suspended. Any person, who continues golf course use when lightning is present, could be present, or after the lightning alarm has sounded, does so at their own risk.

PRACTICE GROUNDS

- 1. The practice grounds are open during normal operating hours as posted in the Golf Shop. The practice grounds may be closed for general maintenance from time to time at the Club's discretion.
- 2. Practice balls are for use on the practice grounds. Practice balls may not be used on the golf course.
- 3. The Director of Agronomy and/or the Director of Golf will designate areas for practice.
- 4. Golf cars are not permitted on any tee area or green areas.
- 5. The Teaching Center may be used for open practice during the daytime hours; please limit your usage to a maximum of thirty minutes. The professional staff will be available for assistance and instruction during normal hours of operation.

CADDIE CUSTOMS AND COURTESIES

1. Members and guests may employ caddies to carry their clubs upon the terms and conditions established by the Club with respect to the Caddie Program.

- 2. The Club may establish days and times when caddies are required, such as tournaments or special events.
- 3. Caddies will be allowed to drive golf cars.
- 4. In inclement weather, all players and caddies should be warned of the conditions. Caddies are not expected to stay with their players if they feel threatened.
- 5. Playing groups with one or more guests are required to take a caddie. Aged-out dependents are not counted as guests for the purposes of this policy.
- 6. All groups of Five (5) or more players are required to take a caddie. For groups of Six (6) or more, two caddies are recommended.

GENERAL GOLF CAR CUSTOMS AND COURTESIES

- 1. All golf cars that are used on the course must be leased through the Club.
- 2. Golf cars may only be used on the golf course when the course is open for play.
- 3. Each operator of a golf car must be at least sixteen (16) years of age and have a valid automobile driver's license.
- 4. Obey all golf car traffic signs.
- 5. Always use golf car paths where provided, especially near tees and greens. Use the ninety degree rule when in effect and cross fairways only at right angles.
- 6. Do not drive a golf car within thirty (30) feet of a green, a tee or a bunker, except on golf car paths.
- 7. Never drive a golf car through a hazard or in coastal areas.
- 8. Be careful to avoid soft areas on fairways, especially after rains.
- 9. Operation of a golf car is at the risk of the operator. Cost of repair to a golf car which is damaged shall be charged to the person who is responsible for such damage. All persons using a golf car shall be held fully responsible for any and all damages, including damages to the golf car, that are caused by the misuse of the golf car by the person or their guests and shall reimburse the Club and/or any operator of the Club for any and all damages the Club may sustain by reason of misuse.
- 10. Each person using a golf car accepts and assumes all responsibility for liability connected with operation of the golf car. The person also expressly indemnifies and agrees to hold harmless the Club and its affiliates, employees, representatives and agents, from any and all damages, whether direct or consequential, arising from or related to the person's use and operation of the golf car.
- 11. Violations of the golf car customs and courtesies may result in loss of golf car privileges and/or playing or membership privileges.

GOLF COURSE ETIQUETTE

Persons using the golf course should do their part to make a round of golf a pleasant experience for everyone. Here are some suggestions:

- 1. Expected pace of play is four hours for an 18-hole round.
- 2. Enter and leave bunkers at the nearest level point to the green. Smooth sand over with a rake upon leaving.
- 3. Repair all ball marks on the green.
- 4. Repair all divots.
- 5. Do not waste time. Anticipate the club or clubs you may need and go directly to your ball. Always be near your ball to play promptly when it is your turn. If a player is delayed in making his shot, it would be courteous for such player to indicate to another player to play which should not be deemed playing out of turn.
- 6. The time required to hole out on and around the green is a chief cause of slow play. Study and clear the line of your putt while others are doing the same. Be ready to putt when it is your turn.
- 7. When approaching a green, park your golf car on the cart path on the best direct line to the next tee. This can save about one-half hour per round. Never leave the golf car in front of the green where you will have to go back to get it, while the following players wait for you to get out of the way.
- 8. When play of a hole is completed, leave the green promptly and proceed to the next tee without delay. Do the scoring for the completed hole while the others in your group are playing from the next tee.
- 9. When the professional staff has determined a group is out of position, ready golf shall be adopted, and players shall play at a brisk pace allowing each other to play when ready, until the group's position has been re-established.

GENERAL TENNIS CUSTOMS AND COURTESIES

- 1. The Rules of Tennis as adopted by the U.S.T.A. shall apply at all times, except when in conflict with the local rules or with any of the Customs and Courtesies herein.
- 2. Play will be on a first-come, first-served basis, in increments of one and one-half (1½) hours. Court reservations may be made by phoning or visiting the Teaching Center or contacting the Tennis Professional.
- 3. Please notify the tennis staff of any cancellation as soon as possible. Players who do not notify the tennis staff of any cancellation may be charged the court fee as determined from time to time by the Club.
- 4. No standing reservations will be accepted.
- 5. At the end of their playing time, all players must promptly relinquish their court to the next players. Once a Member is off the court, the Member may sign up for the next available court time.

- 6. No skateboards, bicycles, roller skates, etc. are permitted on a court.
- 7. Proper tennis attire as determined by the Tennis Pro is required at all times. Colors are permitted, but cut-offs, Bermuda's, jams, bathing suits, mesh shirts, tank tops, gym shorts, slacks and running shorts are not permitted. Shirts and regulation tennis shoes are required with non-marking soles.
- 8. Proper tennis etiquette as set forth below should be observed at all times. Excessive noise, racquet throwing or profanity will not be permitted at any time.
- 9. The Club may reserve courts for special events when needed.
- 10. Use of tennis courts shall at all times be subject to the control of the Club.
- 11. The tennis facilities may be closed when necessary for maintenance operations or when dictated by safety considerations as determined by the Club.
- 12. The Club may implement temporary customs and courtesies during peak play periods.
- 13. No food or beverages other than water are allowed on the tennis courts.
- 14. Lighting will cease at 10:00 PM nightly.

TENNIS ETIQUETTE

- 1. All persons preparing to enter or cross a court should wait until play has halted, then proceed quickly and quietly to their assigned court.
- 2. All persons requesting the return of a tennis ball from another court should ask only when play on that court has halted. Players should not retrieve a tennis ball from another court themselves.
- 3. All persons should refrain from loud or offensive language on the court or while spectating. A low profile is both appropriate and appreciated.
- 4. Persons not playing should stay off the court surfaces.
- 5. Courts should be vacated promptly after the reserved playing time is over.

FITNESS FACILITIES

- 1. Regular operating hours for the fitness facilities will be posted by the Club and may be changed from time to time.
- 2. A health questionnaire must be completed and signed before a personal trainer can be engaged. No physician or nurse will be on duty.
- 3. Guest fees will be charged for the fitness facilities. The Member's Club account will be billed.
- 4. Casual workout attire is acceptable at the fitness facilities: tee shirts, gym shorts or warm-up pants for men; leotards, tights, gym shorts or warm-up pants for women. Closed toe footwear and shirts are required at all times.

- 5. Horseplay, profanity, disruptive conduct and indiscreet behavior at the fitness facilities are strictly prohibited.
- 6. No outside personal trainers are allowed at Vaquero.
- 7. The movement studios room may be booked for a private event with the permission of the Club Management.
- 8. Children ages 14+ years of age may workout unattended.
- 9. Children under 14 years of age must be supervised by a personal trainer.

Club Pool

- 1. The pool hours shall be established and published by the Club and shall be subject to change as determined by the Club. The Club reserves the right to set aside designated times during normal hours of pool operation for special events, during which times use of any given pool area by Members and guests may be restricted. Swimming is permitted only during designated hours.
- 2. Be safe; do not swim alone. Use of a pool at any time is at the swimmer's own risk; there is no lifeguard on duty. Any injuries or accidents should be reported to the Club staff immediately.
- 3. Members must register their guests and are responsible for payment of any appropriate charge as the Club may determine from time to time.
- 4. Children under fourteen (14) years of age must be accompanied by an adult.
- 5. Children five (5) and under must have direct adult supervision when in the main or kiddie pool.
- 6. Children three (3) years old and younger, as well as any child not potty trained, must wear snug fitting plastic pants, water-proof pants or swim diaper when in the pool.
- 7. Food is allowed only in designated areas of the pool facilities. No food or beverage consumption is permitted in the pool. All food and beverages must be provided by the Club.
- 8. All swimmers must wear bona fide swimming attire; no cut-offs, shorts, etc. in the pool.
- 9. Radios, televisions, compact disc players, I-pods, and other audible devices may be used with personal earphones or maintained at a volume not offensive to others.
- 10. Animals, bicycles and coolers are restricted from the pool areas.
- 11. Diving or running in or around the pool is not permitted; climbing, jumping or diving from the rocks is not permitted. Disorderly or offensive behavior will not be tolerated.
- 12. The Club staff has the authority to expel from the pool areas anyone who fails to cooperate in following these Pool Customs & Courtesies or whose conduct is otherwise unbecoming of a Member.
- 13. All persons using the pool areas are urged to cooperate in keeping the areas clean by properly disposing of towels, cans, garbage, etc.
- 14. The pool and pool area must be cleared of all persons during inclement weather upon the direction of the Club staff.

CHILDREN

- 1. Children under fourteen (14) years of age are not allowed at the Club Facilities unless accompanied and supervised by an adult unless otherwise permitted by the Board of Directors.
- 2. Children under sixteen (16) years of age are not allowed to use the Dining and Wet areas in the Men's or Women's' locker room unless accompanied and supervised by an adult unless otherwise permitted by the General Manager.
- 3. Children under the lawful drinking age are not permitted to sit at a bar unless accompanied by an adult.
- 4. Members are responsible for the conduct and safety of their children when at the Club Facilities.
- 5. Children without a valid driver's license are not permitted to drive golf cars on Club property. Parents will be held liable in the event of an accident.
- 6. Children should not play games in the area of the Golf Shop, tennis courts or fitness center.
- 7. Children under fourteen (14) years of age are not permitted to use the fitness facilities unless accompanied or supervised by an adult.
- 8. Horseplay, profanity, disruptive conduct and indiscreet behavior at the fitness facilities are strictly prohibited.

KID'S CLUB

The goal of the Vaquero Kids Club is to create a unique environment for Members of all ages. We have a group of highly qualified staff that strives to make each child feel welcome, happy, and excited for each visit. With this staff we are able to accommodate a wide age range, and often take older children out to enjoy other Vaquero facilities like Fish Camp and Tennis. This helps us offer a wide variety of age-appropriate activities to satisfy almost any child's interests.

- 1. Children ages 4 to 12 years old may use the Kid's Club services and will be charged the fees established by the Board of Directors.
- 2. Parents will be required to sign their child (ren) in and out upon arrival and departure.
- 3. Parents will only be allowed to drop their children off at the Kid's Club if parents are either on property or within 5-minutes away and readily available to their children.
- 4. Vaquero staff members are not allowed to transport children.
- 5. Early drop-offs cannot be accommodated. Late pick-ups will incur an additional fee.

FISH CAMP

- 1. Hours of operation will be posted on the website and are subject to change at the discretion of Club Management.
- 2. Fish in all lakes are catch and release.

- 3. Hooks used in all lakes must be barbless.
- 4. Objects must not be thrown in the water.
- 5. Live bait may not be used on any of the lakes.
- 6. Proper Attire including shirts and shoes must be worn.
- 7. Children under the age of 12 must be accompanied by an adult.
- 8. Small children must not be left unattended on the dock.
- 9. Guests must be accompanied by a Member or arrange for prior approval by Club Management.
- 10. Equipment borrowed from Fish Camp must be signed out with a Fish Camp employee and returned to Fish Camp.
- 11. Paddle boats, canoes, and boat fishing trips may be available at a charge to the Member.
- 12. When the lightning alarm sounds (by the golf staff via a horn or notice through the golf Visage system), there will be no fishing, or anyone permitted on the dock.